
 
Proposed Meeting Agenda 

SOUTH DAKOTA ELECTRICAL COMMISSION 
via Microsoft Teams   

or Call +1 605-679-7263 ID 327040600 
Tuesday, April 16, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. CDT 

 
 

A. Call to Order    

B. Agenda     

C. Minutes of February 8, 2024  

D. Public Comment 

E. Disconnect Notices Update   

F. Fees for Reinspections and Requested Inspections Correction 

G. Proposed Administrative Rules Changes 

H. Executive Session pursuant to SDCL 1-25-2, as necessary 

I. President’s Report Sean Lyons 

J. Executive Director’s Report Pamela Overweg 

K. Inspector’s Report Brent Schoulte 

L. Adjournment 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZTA1YzlmMTAtYzRmYS00MzViLTg0OTctMTRmOTg4MGU1ZjAz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2270af547c-69ab-416d-b4a6-543b5ce52b99%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%228794c5e8-0340-4645-bdda-ebf01077ced9%22%7d


 

 

  

Meeting Minutes    
SOUTH DAKOTA ELECTRICAL COMMISSION   

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

February 8, 2024, 9:00 a.m. CDT  
   
President Lyons called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. Director Overweg called the roll. 
A quorum was present.   
   
Members Present:  Sean Lyons, Rick Cronin, Dave Eide, Doug Fuerst, Tor Sorlien 

  
Members Absent:  Russ VanDerWerff  
   
Others Present: Pamela Overweg - executive director, Jerry McCabe - DLR division director, 
Brent Schoulte - lead inspector, Rachel Dix – SDHBA, Jodi Aumer - director of professional 
licensing 
 

  
Dave Eide requested the commission add Disconnect Notices to the agenda as the 
new letter I. Tor Sorlien made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. Rick 
Cronin seconded the motion.  MOTION PASSED.   
 
Rick Cronin made a motion to approve the October 24 hearing minutes. Doug Fuerst 
seconded the motion.  MOTION PASSED.   
 

   
President Lyons opened the floor to public input. Rachel Dix spoke on behalf of the South 
Dakota Home Builders Association thanking the commission for including them in the process 
and discussion. 
 
Director Overweg presented the board with a request from someone to achieve the license of 
inspector based on a previous test score without taking a new test. The board discussed the 
rule and agreed that any license must be obtained within 90 days of taking the test or the test 
score is forfeited. If an individual takes the test and obtains a contractor license, they would still 
have 90 days to obtain an inspector license without retaking the test. 
  
Director Overweg presented the board with a proposed policy for interpreting ARSD 20:44:20:10 
in regard to requested inspections and reinspections.  The board discussed the rule. Tor Sorlien 
made a motion to adopt the proposed policy with an effective date of March 1, 2024. Rick 
Cronin seconded the motion. MOTION PASSED.   
 
Dave Eide presented the board with discussion on how disconnects are currently handled and 
proposed the commission look at a new process. The board discussed different aspects of 
disconnects and asked Director Overweg to obtain more information on the commission’s 
authority to have inspectors lock out installations for the next board meeting or to charge fees 
for sending disconnects.  
 
President Lyons reported to the board on his attendance at the annual meeting for SDHBA and 
his discussion with them on how the electrical commission is self-funded.  The SDHBA shared 



 

 

with him their concerns on a need for inspectors on the western side of the state, and the 
varying interpretations of code between inspectors. 
 
Director Overweg reported to the board on the progress SB 81 regarding homeowner wiring and 
the passing of SB 57 regarding the consideration of criminal histories. The commission currently 
has two openings for inspectors that they are trying to fill. The new database is progressing with 
goals of having it in place before the 2024 renewal. Billing continues to make progress with an 
increase in the overall cash balance since the last meeting. Director Overweg also introduced 
Jodi Aumer as the director of professional licensing starting February 9th.   
 
Brent Schoulte updated the board on the current volume of permits leveling off and the 
inspectors held a meeting February 1st.  
 

The next Commission meeting is tentatively scheduled for April 16, 2023.  
 

Tor Sorlien a motion to adjourn the Commission meeting. Rick Cronin seconded the motion. 
MOTION PASSED.  The meeting adjourned at 10:11 a.m.   



E. Disconnect Notices Update  
 
Listed below are the statutes that mention and/or outline the authority of the electrical 
commission when it comes to disconnects. The electrical commission does not have statutory 
authority for the inspectors to use physical means to lock out circuit breakers for installations. 
 
20:44:19:03. Rough-in inspection. An inspector shall record on the inspector's daily report any 
electrical installation that has serious or hazardous violations of the National Electrical Code, is 
too incomplete to inspect finally, or is too large to be inspected during one inspection as a 
rough-in inspection. A blue rough-in tag shall be dated, signed, and applied on or near the 
service disconnect by the electrical inspector.  
 
When life or safety violations are noted, the inspector shall provide an inspection report to the 
electrical installer.  
 
The installer shall correct all noted violations and notify the inspector of those corrections by 
the date specified on the inspector's report and in compliance with § 20:44:19:07.  
If the installer fails to notify the inspector by the date specified on the inspector's report, the 
inspector shall issue a correction order to the installer ordering compliance with SDCL chapter 
36-16 and this article. The inspector shall assess fees according to § 20:44:20:12.  
 
If the installer fails to comply with the correction order or fails to pay the fees according to § 
20:44:20:12, the inspector may final void the installation with notice of non-compliance to 
installer, order a disconnect, or make a compliance request of the electrician's undertaking 
fund. In addition, the commission may conduct a hearing to determine whether the violator's 
license should be revoked. 
  
If at any time during the process the owner of a residential or farmstead installation refuses to 
allow for corrections by an installer the inspector shall final void the installation with notice of 
non-compliance to installer or order the service disconnected. If at any time during the process 
the owner of a commercial installation refuses to allow for corrections the inspector shall order 
the service disconnected.  
 
If an owner performing electrical installations under an owner's exemption refuses to make 
corrections, the inspector shall final void the installation with notice of non-compliance to 
owner, provide an inspection report to the owner, or order the service disconnected. The 
owner shall correct all noted violations and notify the inspector of those corrections by the date 
specified on the inspector's report and in compliance with § 20:44:19:07. If the owner fails to 
notify the inspector by the date specified on the inspector's report, the inspector shall issue a 
correction order to the owner ordering compliance with SDCL chapter 36-16 and this article. 
The inspector shall assess fees according to§ 20:44:20:12.  
 



Violations considered inconsequential to the safety of life and property do not require an 
inspector's report, and corrections may be made at the convenience of the installer. This status 
may change with the next inspection.  
 
Source: 2 SDR 89, effective July 2, 1976; 12 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1986; 12 SDR 151, 12 
SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 14 SDR 76, effective November 30, 1987; 16 SDR 153, effective 
March 29, 1990; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from § 20:44:11:03, August 12, 
1994; 40 SDR 198, effective May 28, 2014; 43 SDR 181, effective July 10, 2017.  
 
General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30.  
Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-15, 36-16-29, 36-16-31.  
 
Cross-Reference: Undertaking and insurance required, SDCL 36-16-20. 
 
20:44:19:05. Final inspection with an inspector's report. If an installation is nearly complete 
and the inspector is satisfied that any minor infractions remaining will not constitute a hazard 
to life or property, the inspector may issue an inspector's report. The inspector shall submit the 
inspector's report to the electrical contractor, Class B electrician, or individual doing electrical 
wiring under an owner's exemption, subject to those corrections specified in the inspector's 
report. The inspector may sign, date, and apply the final green tag on or near the service 
disconnect.  
 
The installer shall correct all noted violations and notify the inspector of those corrections by 
the date specified on the inspector's report and in compliance with § 20:44:19:07.  
If the installer fails to notify the inspector by the date indicated on the inspector's report, the 
inspector shall issue a correction order to the installer ordering compliance with SDCL chapter 
36-16 and this article. The inspector shall assess fees according to § 20:44:20:12.  
 
If the installer fails to comply with the terms of the correction order or fails to pay the fees 
according to § 20:44:20:12, the inspector may final void the installation with notice of non-
compliance to installer, order a disconnect, or make a compliance request of the electrician's 
undertaking fund. In addition, the commission may conduct a hearing to determine whether 
the violator's license should be revoked.  
 
If at any time during the process the owner of a residential or farmstead installation refuses to 
allow for corrections by an installer the inspector shall final void or final subject the installation 
with notice of non-compliance to installer or order the service disconnected. If at any time 
during the process the owner of a commercial installation refuses to allow for corrections the 
inspector shall order the service disconnected.  
 
If an owner performing electrical installations under an owner's exemption refuses to make 
corrections, the inspector shall provide an inspection report to the owner, final void or final 
subject the installation with notice of non-compliance to owner, or order the service 
disconnected. The owner shall correct all noted violations and notify the inspector of those 



corrections by the date specified on the inspector's report and in compliance with § 
20:44:19:07. If the owner fails to notify the inspector by the date specified on the inspector's 
report, the inspector shall issue a correction order to the owner ordering compliance with SDCL 
chapter 36-16 and this article. The inspector shall assess fees according to § 20:44:20:12. 
Violations considered inconsequential to the safety of life and property do not require an 
inspector's report, and corrections may be made at the convenience of the installer. This status 
may change with the next inspection.  
 
Source: 2 SDR 89, effective July 2, 1976; 5 SDR 1, effective July 20, 1978; 10 SDR 131, effective 
June 3, 1984; 12 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1986; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 
1986; 14 SDR 76, effective November 30, 1987; black-tagging provision transferred from § 
20:44:11:07, 18 SDR 83, effective November 10, 1991; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; 
transferred from § 20:44:11:06, August 12, 1994; 40 SDR 198, effective May 28, 2014; 43 SDR 
181, effective July 10, 2017; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020.  
 
General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12.  
Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-15, 36-16-29, 36-16-31.  
 
36-16-29. State commission inspectors and inspections--Report of inspection. 

The State Electrical Commission shall approve inspectors qualified in accordance with 
subdivision 36-16-2(4) and shall, in compliance with chapter 1-26, establish the rules to be 
followed by the inspectors. An inspector may inspect any wiring installation and approve or 
condemn it except on work covered in § 36-16-16. A report of such inspections shall be made on 
forms prescribed by the commission. 
 
36-16-31. Condemnation of hazardous installations--Notice--Appeal to commission and circuit 
court. 

Inspectors authorized by the State Electrical Commission to conduct inspections may 
condemn installations hazardous to life and property and may order service thereto 
discontinued. Such action may not be taken except after notice to the owner of the property and 
shall be subject to the owner's right of appeal to the commission. The commission shall comply 
with chapter 1-26, and its decision may be appealed as provided by chapter 1-26. 

 
Source: SL 1963, ch 216, § 5 (2); SL 1967, ch 128, § 2; revised pursuant to SL 1972, ch 15, § 4. 
 
 20:10:20:06.  The disconnecting act. Service shall not be disconnected on any Friday, Saturday, 
Sunday, legal holiday, or at any time when the utility's business offices are not open to the 
public. 
 
          Source: 3 SDR 2, effective July 19, 1976; 12 SDR 86, effective November 24, 1985; 12 SDR 
151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986. 
 
          General Authority:SDCL 49-34A-4. 
          Law Implemented:SDCL 49-34A-3, 49-34A-4, 49-34A-27. 

https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes/Codified_Laws/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-16-29
https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes/Codified_Laws/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=1-26
https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes/Codified_Laws/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-16-16
https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes/Codified_Laws/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-16-31
https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes/Codified_Laws/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=1-26
https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes/Codified_Laws/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=1-26
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=49-34A-4
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=49-34A-3
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=49-34A-4
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=49-34A-27


I reached out to a number of surrounding states and received responses from all of the below 
stating the power supplier would shut power off if an installation was condemned.  I found no 
instance of an electrical commission or inspector physically disconnecting/locking out power. 
States that responded: 

• Idaho 
• Montana 
• Iowa 
• Alaska 
• Arkansas 
• Nebraska 
• North Dakota 
• Texas 
• Oklahoma 
• Minnesota 

  
 



F. Fees for Reinspection and Requested Inspections Correction

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND REGULATION 

ELECTRICAL COMMISSION 

Policy on requested and reinspections. 

ARSD 20:44:20:10 provides: 

Minimum fee for requested electrical inspections or for reinspections. A minimum 
inspection fee of $75 for residential and $100 for commercial installations for each 
inspection man-hour or fraction of a man-hour is charged for any requested electrical 
inspections or any reinspections to address corrections detailed in a report for a rough-in 
or final inspection. 

Based on the above-referenced administrative rule, all requested or reinspections shall 
be charged the applicable fees as follows: 

For each visit of an inspector to the installation: 
1. Up to one hour: the full fee of $75 (residential) or $100 (commercial) is charged.
2. After the first hour, the fee for each additional quarter of an hour is $18.75

(residential) or $25 (commercial) and will be rounded to the nearest 15 minutes (1-
6 7 minutes rounds down, 7 8 -14 minutes rounds up).

Policy adopted _______________________, 2024. 



20:44:14:01.  General definitions. Terms defined in SDCL 36-16-2 have the same meaning in 
this article. As used in this article: 

(1) "Commission" means the State Electrical Commission;

(2) "Inspector's report procedure" means a procedure that requires the installer to notify the
inspector regarding the status of the corrections required, as listed on an inspector's report by the 
day specified; 

(3) "Correction order" means a notice written by an inspector to the person responsible for
the electrical installation, listing the violations of this article and stating the time allowed for 
correction; 

(4) "Electrical lineman" means a person with a minimum of four years of experience with
electrical power distribution systems; 

(5) "Electrical school," as referred to in SDCL 36-16-2(4), means a four-year educational
institution which grants an electrical engineering degree (BSEE) and which is accredited by a 
nationally recognized accreditation agency; 

(6) "Electrical wiring apprenticeship program" means a classroom program supplemented
by a minimum of 144 hours per year of electrical wiring instruction in conjunction with the normal 
2,000 hours per year of actual electrical wiring on-the-job work experience of an apprentice 
electrician; 

(7) "Final subject" means the act of closing out a non-compliant residential installation after
all inspections have been performed and the residence owner of the installation acknowledges 
acceptance of the report of non-compliance; 

(8) "Final void" means the act of closing out a non-compliant installation prior to the full
inspection being completed; 

(9) "License" means a license issued to a person who qualifies under one of the classes
defined in SDCL 36-16-2 or is granted reciprocity from another state; 

(10) "Local inspection system" means a municipal government or power supplier that has
complied with commission requirements and which provides local electrical inspections under the 
rules and direction of the commission and SDCL chapter 36-16; 

(11) "Modular home" or "modular structure" means a home or other structure built on a
factory assembly line or other construction site to International Building Code specifications and 
transported to its destination in sections or as a complete assembly, which has no permanent steel 
chassis attached and is not a manufactured home as defined in SDCL 32-7A-1 or a recreational 
vehicle; 

G. Proposed Administrative Rules Changes



 

(12)  "National Electrical Code" means the code published by the National Fire Protection 
Association (2020 2023 edition) with the following exceptions: 
 
  (a)  Sections 210.8(F) and 230.67; 
  (b)  Article 100 – definitions - remove the new word "machinery" from the definition of 
"equipment"; 
  (c)  The words "through 250-volt" are changed to ", single-phase, 15- and 20-ampere" in 
section 210.8(A); Properly labeled RV receptacles other than 125-volt, single-phase, 15- and 20- 
ampere receptacles are exempt from GFCI requirements in 210.8(A). 
  (d) Eliminate GFCI and AFCI requirement for life support equipment and like or similar 
equipment as determined by Authority Having Jurisdiction; 
  (e) Clarify section 334.10. Uses permitted. Type NM, Type NMC, and Type NMS cables 
may be used in the following structures: 
 
   (i)    One- and two-family dwellings and accessory structures; 
 
   (ii)   Multifamily dwellings, farmsteads, and accessory structures of Types III, IV, 
and V construction, except as prohibited in 334.12; 
 
   (iii)  Other structures permitted to be of Types III, IV, and V construction except as 
prohibited in 334.12. Cables shall be concealed within walls, floors, or ceilings that provide a 
thermal barrier of material that has at least a 15-minute thermal finish rating as identified in listing 
of fire-rated assemblies; and 
 
  (f)  The words "a zone measured 900 mm (3 ft) horizontally and 2.5 m (8 ft) vertically 
from the top of the bathtub rim or shower stall threshold. The identified zone is all-encompassing 
and shall include the space" are changed to "or" and the words "the tub" are changed to "a bathtub" 
in section 406.9(c); 
 
 (13)  "Owner's exemption" means an exemption from licensure requirements in SDCL 36-
16-13 for an individual owner who is personally wiring an electrical installation on a residence or 
farmstead; 
 
 (14)  "Point of service attachment," as referred to in SDCL 36-16-16(1), means that point 
where the power supplier's conductors connect to the consumer's conductors; 
 
 (15)  "Wiring permit" means a form notifying the commission that a described electrical 
installation will be made in accordance with the requirements of this article at a described location; 
 
 (16)  "Wiring permit--Form B" means a wiring permit to be used in an area where the 
commission has approved local inspection systems; and 
 
 (17)  "Wiring school" means a postsecondary school that teaches one or more courses in 
electrical wiring which covers the topics listed in § 20:44:16:12 and includes at least 576 hours of 
instruction on those topics.; and 



 

 (18) “Third party inspector” is a person or multiple people at a business entity approved by 
the Commission pursuant to subdivision 20:44:16:28 who has similar qualifications to state-
licensed electrical inspectors and conducts electrical inspections in compliance with the National 
Electrical Code. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 4 SDR 37, effective January 1, 1978; 5 SDR 1, effective July 
20, 1978; 7 SDR 60, effective January 1, 1981; 10 SDR 62, effective January 1, 1984; 10 SDR 
131, effective June 3, 1984; 12 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1986; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, 
effective July 1, 1986; 13 SDR 75, 13 SDR 95, effective January 1, 1987; 16 SDR 153, effective 
March 29, 1990; 19 SDR 155, effective April 14, 1993; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; 
transferred from § 20:44:01:01, August 12, 1994; 23 SDR 2, effective July 16, 1996; 25 SDR 157, 
effective July 1, 1999; 28 SDR 83, effective December 19, 2001; 28 SDR 178, effective July 1, 
2002; 32 SDR 37, effective September 1, 2005; 34 SDR 322, effective July 1, 2008; 35 SDR 305, 
effective July 1, 2009; 37 SDR 236, effective June 29, 2011; 40 SDR 198, effective May 28, 2014; 
43 SDR 181, effective July 10, 2017; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020; 46 SDR 146, effective 
June 30, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-12. 
 
 References: The National Electrical Code, 2020 2023 Edition. National Fire Protection 
Association, Inc., One Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02169-7471. Cost: $108$145.50. (Price 
subject to change). Available for no cost at https://www.nfpa.org/Codes-and-Standards/All-
Codes-and-Standards/Free-access 
 
 International Building Code, 20182021 Edition, pages numbered numerically, 
International Code Council. Copies may be obtained from the International Code Council, Inc., 
4051 West Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5771. Cost: $136192. Available for no 
cost at https://codes.iccsafe.org/content/IBC2018P4 
 
20:44:16:24.  Renewal of license. A maintenance electrician license holder must renew the 
license biennially prior to the license expiration date and must request inspection or waiver of 
inspection of electrical work prior to renewal. The application for renewal of a maintenance 
electrician's license must contain a statement that the applicant assumes all risk, liability, and 
responsibility for electrical work done by its employees and must be accompanied by a renewal 
fee of $80. All electrical violations found by an inspection must be corrected before the 
commission renews the entity's maintenance electrician license. 
 
 The commission may waive inspection if the commission receives written confirmation that 
no maintenance work has occurred in the preceding two years or receives an inspection report of 
maintenance electrical work from a qualified third party that has inspection authority over the 
maintenance licensee that is recognized by the commission., as defined in 20:44:16:28. 
 
 A qualified third party is not a state or local electrical inspector but must have similar 
qualifications and must conduct electrical inspections following the National Electrical Code as 
defined in subdivision 20:44:14:01(12). Persons applying to the commission for approval as 

https://www.nfpa.org/Codes-and-Standards/All-Codes-and-Standards/Free-access
https://www.nfpa.org/Codes-and-Standards/All-Codes-and-Standards/Free-access
https://codes.iccsafe.org/public/document/toc/542


 

qualified third parties must submit applications listing their qualifications on forms provided by 
the commission. 
 
 Source: 23 SDR 236, effective July 16, 1997; 43 SDR 181, effective July 10, 2017; 48 SDR 
23, effective September 15, 2021. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-13.2, 36-16-17. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-13.2, 36-16-17. 
 
 Cross-References: 
 Electrical experience for advancement, § 20:44:16:08. 
 Local inspection systems, ch 20:44:21. 
 
20:44:18:01.  Wiring permit required. The following electrical installations and electrical 
service entrances require a wiring permit: 
 
 (1)  All electrical service entrances. A single wiring permit may be used for a temporary 
electrical service and a new service on a single project when both are installed by the same 
contractor, which must be stated on the wiring permit at the start of the project. Separate wiring 
permits are required if more than one contractor is involved; and 
 
 (2)  Electrical wiring being performed under an owner's exemption. 
 
 All other electrical installations with a calculated inspection fee of $10 or greater require a 
wiring permit and minimum electrical inspection fee, as required by § 20:44:20:02.01of of no less 
than $100, a specific fee as provided by chapter 20:44:20, or exclusions not requiring a wiring 
permit and noted under the provisions of article 20:44 and SDCL chapter 36-16. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 13 SDR 75, 
13 SDR 95, effective January 1, 1987; 20 SDR 92, January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 
1994; transferred from § 20:44:04:01, August 12, 1994; 32 SDR 37, effective September 1, 2005; 
37 SDR 236, effective June 29, 2011. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:02.  Inspection fees for service connections on other electrical installations. 
Inspection fees for electrical service connections on new installations, including new service 
installations on commercial installations and new service installations not covered in this chapter, 
are based on service equipment ampere capacity as follows and include rough-in inspections as 
noted: 
 
 (1)  0 through 200 amperes: $60 plus circuits, and includes one rough-in inspection; 
 (2)  201 through 400 amperes: $75 plus circuits, and includes one rough-in inspection; 
 (3)  401 through 800 amperes: $100 plus circuits, and includes one rough-in inspection; 
 (4)  801 through 1600 amperes: $150 plus circuits, and includes one rough-in inspection; 
and 
 (5)  1601 amperes and over: $275 plus circuits, and includes two rough-in inspections. 



 

 
 Inspection fees for electrical service connections on existing installations, including 
replacement service installations for existing homes, commercial installations, and installations 
not covered in this chapter, are based on service equipment ampere capacity as follows and do not 
include a rough-in inspection: 
 
 (1)  0 through 200 amperes: $100 plus new circuits; 
 (2)  201 through 400 amperes: $125 plus new circuits; 
 (3)  401 through 800 amperes: $150 plus new circuits; 
 (4)  801 through 1600 amperes: $175 plus new circuits; and 
 (5)  1601 amperes and over: $200 plus new circuits. 
 
 Fees for remodeling single family residences may not exceed the flat rate fee for comparable 
new single family residential electrical services in § 20:44:20:01. In addition to the rough-in 
inspections set forth in this section, each installation under this section includes one final 
inspection. Additional requested inspections or reinspections to address corrections detailed in a 
report for a rough-in or final inspection may be assessed fees under § 20:44:20:10. A minimum 
fee of $100 shall be imposed if the total fee calculated under this section is less than $100. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 5 SDR 1, effective July 20, 1978; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1986; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 20 
SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from 
§ 20:44:06:02, August 12, 1994; 37 SDR 236, effective June 29, 2011; 46 SDR 128, effective May 
26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:03.  Inspection fee for circuit installations or alterations. The inspection fee for 
circuit installations or alterations, including commercial installations, new installations in existing 
homes, and other installations not covered by this chapter is $50 per circuit. 
 
 Any fee calculated in this section may not exceed the calculated fee for a new installation of 
the same type in §§ 20:44:20:01 and 20:44:20:02. A minimum fee of $100 shall be imposed if the 
total fee calculated under this section is less than $100. A one- or two-circuit installation or 
alteration includes one inspection. An installation or alteration of three or more circuits includes 
two inspections. Additional requested inspections or reinspections to address corrections detailed 
in a report for a rough-in or final inspection may be assessed fees under § 20:44:20:10. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 5 SDR 1, effective July 20, 1978; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1986; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 20 
SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from 
§ 20:44:06:03, August 12, 1994; 32 SDR 37, effective September 1, 2005; 37 SDR 236, effective 
June 29, 2011; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 



 

20:44:20:04.  Inspection fees for electrical installations associated with remodeling projects. 
When neither the service nor the branch circuits are altered, inspection fees associated with a 
remodeling project, including remodeling work in existing homes, are as follows: 
 
 (1)  First 40 openings or connections: $2 each; 
 (2)  Each additional opening or connection: $0.50; 
 (3)  First 40 lighting fixtures: $2 each; 
 (4)  Each additional lighting fixture: $0.50; and 
 (5)  Each motor or other special equipment: $6. 
 
 A minimum fee of $100 shall be imposed if the total fee calculated under this section is less 
than $100. Each permit under this section includes one inspection. Additional requested 
inspections or reinspections to address corrections detailed in a report for a rough-in or final 
inspection may be assessed fees under § 20:44:20:10. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 2 SDR 89, effective July 2, 1976; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1986; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 20 
SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from 
§ 20:44:06:04, August 12, 1994; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:05.  Inspection fees for electrical installations in apartment buildings. Inspection 
fees for apartment buildings are $50 per unit. 
 
 If each apartment is served individually, the service is included in the flat rate fee. All other 
service entrances are subject to § 20:44:20:02 and all other circuits and feeders are subject to 
§ 20:44:20:02.01. A minimum fee of $100 shall be imposed if the total fee calculated under this 
section is less than $100. 
 
 Each permit for an apartment building includes one rough-in inspection per 4 units and one 
final inspection. Additional requested inspections or reinspections to address corrections detailed 
in a report for a rough-in or final inspection may be assessed fees under § 20:44:20:10. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 5 SDR 1, effective July 20, 1978; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 20 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 
SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from § 20:44:06:05, August 12, 1994; 37 SDR 236, 
effective June 29, 2011; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:06.  Inspection fees for electrical installations serving outdoor signs and area 
lighting. The inspection fee for outdoor sign feeders or branch circuits and for area lighting is 
calculated as follows: 
 



 

 (1)  For each outdoor sign feeders feeder or branch circuits circuit, the greater of (a) or (b), 
as follows: 
 
  (a)  $50 for each outdoor sign feeder or branch circuit; or 
  (b)  The fee calculated in accordance with §§ 20:44:20:02 and 20:44:20:02.01, with a 
maximum of $60 each; 
 
 (2)  For area lighting, the fee calculated in accordamce accordance with §§ 20:44:20:02 and 
20:44:20:02.01, with a maximum of $60 each. 
 
 A minimum fee of $100 shall be imposed if the total fee calculated under this section is less 
than $100. 
 
 Each permit under this section includes one inspection. Additional requested inspections or 
reinspections to address corrections detailed in a report for a rough-in or final inspection may be 
assessed fees under § 20:44:20:10. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 2 SDR 89, effective July 2, 1976; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 16 SDR 153, effective March 29, 1990; 
18 SDR 83, effective November 10, 1991; 20 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, 
effective July 6, 1994; transferred from § 20:44:06:06, August 12, 1994; 37 SDR 236, effective 
June 29, 2011; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:07.  Inspection fees for electrical installations serving field irrigation systems. 
Inspection fees for electrical installations serving field irrigation systems are as follows: 
 
 (1)  The inspection fee for an irrigation system, which includes one irrigation machine, either 
pipe or pivot, that is supplied by one main or booster pump and one electrical service, is $75 plus 
$2 for each motor, except for the motor driving the pivot; 
 
 (2)  The inspection fee for a pumping station is computed in accordance with §§ 20:44:20:02 
and 20:44:20:02.01; 
 
 (3)  The inspection fee for a diesel-driven water pump, at which the diesel also drives an 
electric generator for power and controls, is computed in accordance with § 20:44:20:10; 
 
 (4)  The inspection fee for an addition to or replacement of an electrically driven pivot on an 
existing system is computed in accordance with § 20:44:20:10; and 
 
 (5)  The inspection fee for a range well must be charged as a requested inspection according 
to § 20:44:20:10 and billed for each inspection hour or fraction of an hour. 
 
 A minimum fee of $100 shall be imposed if the total fee calculated under this section is less 
than $100. 



 

 
 Each permit under this section includes one inspection. Additional requested inspections or 
reinspections to address corrections detailed in a report for a rough-in or final inspection may be 
assessed fees under § 20:44:20:10. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 2 SDR 89, effective July 2, 1976; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 20 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 
SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from § 20:44:06:07, August 12, 1994; 32 SDR 37, 
effective September 1, 2005; 37 SDR 236, effective June 29, 2011; 46 SDR 128, effective May 
26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:08.  Inspection fees for mobile home services and feeders. The inspection fee for 
services to each mobile home service or feeder, whether on or off a mobile home court, is as 
follows: 
 
 (1)  First unit: $75; 
 (2)  Each additional unit: $35. 
 
 One wiring permit may apply to an entire mobile home court if the number of lots included 
is specified on the wiring permit before it is sent to the commission office. 
 
 A minimum fee of $100 shall be imposed if the total fee calculated under this section is less 
than $100. 
 
 Each permit under this section will receive one inspection. Additional requested inspections 
or reinspections to address corrections detailed in a report for a final inspection may be assessed 
fees under § 20:44:20:10. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 5 SDR 1, effective July 20, 1978; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 10 SDR 131, effective June 3, 1984; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 20 
SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from 
§ 20:44:06:08, August 12, 1994; 32 SDR 37, effective September 1, 2005; 46 SDR 128, effective 
May 26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:09.  Inspection fees for electrical installations at recreational vehicle parks. The 
inspection fee is $20 for each recreational vehicle park unit pedestal. A minimum fee of $100 shall 
be imposed if the total fee calculated under this section is less than $100. Each permit under this 
section shall receive one inspection. Additional requested inspections or reinspections to address 
corrections detailed in a report for an inspection may be assessed fees under § 20:44:20:10. 
 
 The service to the recreational vehicle park itself is computed under § 20:44:20:02. 
 



 

 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 5 SDR 1, effective July 20, 1978; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 16 SDR 153, effective March 29, 1990; 
20 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from 
§ 20:44:06:09, August 12, 1994; 37 SDR 236, effective June 29, 2011; 46 SDR 128, effective May 
26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:20:10.  Minimum fee for requested electrical inspections or for reinspections. A 
minimum inspection fee of $75 for residential and $100 for commercial installations for the first 
hour of each inspection man-hour or fraction of a man-hour is charged will be charged for any 
requested electrical inspections or any reinspections to address corrections detailed in a report for 
a rough-in or final inspection. Every additional hour or fifteen-minute increment of an hour is 
charged at a rate of $25 per fifteen-minute increment, up to the maximums outlined in SDCL 36-
16-30 for the type of installation. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 2 SDR 89, effective July 2, 1976; 7 SDR 90, effective April 1, 
1981; 12 SDR 92, effective January 1, 1986; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 20 
SDR 92, effective January 1, 1994; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from 
§ 20:44:06:10, August 12, 1994; 32 SDR 37, effective September 1, 2005; 43 SDR 181, effective 
July 10, 2017; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 
20:44:22:07.  Residential heating plant disconnect. Heating plant installations that include 
auxiliary motor-operated equipment rated 25 amps or less require a disconnect on the unit. separate 
disconnecting means from the branch-circuit overcurrent protective device.  The disconnect must 
be located at the unit and readily accessible from the service compartment. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; transferred 
from § 20:44:05:07, August 12, 1994; 29 SDR 87, effective December 24, 2002; 43 SDR 181, 
effective July 10, 2017; 48 SDR 23, effective September 15, 2021. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-27. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-27. 
 
 Note: Also see Article 424 of the National Electrical Code. 
 

CHAPTER 20:44:23 
 

MODULAR HOMES AND STRUCTURES 
 
Section 
 
20:44:23:01        Modular homes and modular structures -- Compliance with requirements. 
 
20:44:23:02        Wiring permit required for modular homes and modular structures. 



 

 
20:44:23:03        Inspection of modular homes and modular structures. 
 
20:44:23:04        Inspection fees for modular homes and modular structures. 
 
20:44:23:05    Third-party inspection. 
 
20:44:23:05.  Third-party inspection. (a) The commission office may approve third parties to 
conduct inspections of modular homes and modular structures under subdivision 20:44:23:03(4). 
An approved third party shall conduct electrical inspections in accordance with the National 
Electrical Code. Applicants seeking approval by the commission to conduct third-party 
inspections must submit applications in the format designated by the commission office. At a 
minimum, an initial or renewal application must include the following: 

(1) List of modular home and modular structure manufacturers in South Dakota with which 
the third party has ever contracted; 

(2) List of jurisdictions in which the third party presently performs any inspections, including 
any supporting documentation; 

(3) List of all individuals who will be conducting the inspections and their qualifications; 
(4) Certificate of liability insurance of at least $1,000,000; 
(5) Copy of accreditation with a nationally recognized testing laboratory as defined by 29 

C.F.R. § 1910.7; and 
(6) Surety bond of $100,000. 

(b) An approval for a third party to conduct inspections is valid for two years and only for the 
individuals identified in most recent application. A renewal application shall be submitted every 
biennium on the form designated by the commission office. 

 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-12. 
 
20:44:24:05.  Minimum inspection fee. Inspection fees for carnivals or celebrations are charged 
to the owners and concessionaires in accordance with the following schedule: 
 
 (1)  $10 for each ride or concession, or for a single concession generator or transformer; 
 (2)  $5 for reinspection of each unit, if required; and 
 (3)  $30 for inspection of transformers or generators. 
 
 A minimum fee of $100 shall be imposed if the total fee calculated under this section is less 
than $100. 
 
 Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 5 SDR 1, effective July 20, 1978; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, 
effective July 1, 1986; 20 SDR 222, effective July 6, 1994; transferred from § 20:44:09:05, August 
12, 1994; 43 SDR 181, effective July 10, 2017; 46 SDR 128, effective May 26, 2020. 
 General Authority: SDCL 36-16-12, 36-16-30. 
 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-16-27, 36-16-30. 



BA0225R1   03/30/2024                               STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA                                           PAGE        35
                                               REVENUE SUMMARY BY BUDGET UNIT
                                                FOR PERIOD ENDING: 03/31/2024

AGENCY      10     LABOR & REGULATION
BUDGET UNIT 1036   ELECTRICAL COMMISSION - INFO

CENTER        COMP      ACCOUNT         DESCRIPTION                 CURRENT MONTH            YEAR-TO-DATE

  COMPANY NO    6503
  COMPANY NAME  PROFESSIONAL & LICENSING BOARDS

103600080801  6503  4293800             PERMITS-EC & CBE                      7,785.00                 83,625.00

103600080801  6503  4293801             PERMITS-HO                              840.00                  9,225.00

103600080801  6503  4293802             PERMITS-FORM B                        2,390.00                 24,785.00

103600080801  6503  4293803             EI LICENSE FEES                         100.00                    200.00

103600080801  6503  4293804             EC LICENSE FEES                         600.00                 11,400.00

103600080801  6503  4293806             JM LICENSE FEES                       1,420.00                 10,720.00

103600080801  6503  4293807             AE LICENSE FEES                       1,740.00                 13,540.00

103600080801  6503  4293808             IEC LICENSE FEES                           .00                    720.00

103600080801  6503  4293810             IJM LICENSE FEES                           .00                    240.00

103600080801  6503  4293811             EC RECIPROCAL FEES                    3,780.00                 15,720.00

103600080801  6503  4293812             JM RECIPROCAL FEES                    1,580.00                 10,660.00

103600080801  6503  4293813             MAINTENANCE LICENSE                     720.00                  1,520.00

103600080801  6503  4293814             EXAM FEES                             1,920.00                 15,920.00

103600080801  6503  4293815             RE-EXAM FEES                            120.00                  1,260.00

103600080801  6503  4293817             INSPECTION FEES                      99,432.50                959,160.04

103600080801  6503  4293818             RE-INSPECTION FEE                          .00                    885.00

 ACCT:   4293       BUSINESS & OCCUP LICENSING (NON-GOVERNMENTAL)           122,427.50              1,159,580.04    *

 ACCT:   42         LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES                                122,427.50              1,159,580.04    **

103600080801  6503  4393200             ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY                  100.00                  1,430.00

 ACCT:   4393       PENALTIES (NON-GOVERNMENTAL)                                100.00                  1,430.00    *

 ACCT:   43         FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES                                 100.00                  1,430.00    **

103600080801  6503  4596110             MISC INCOME                                .00                     40.00

 ACCT:   4596                                                                      .00                     40.00    *

 ACCT:   45         CHARGES FOR SALES & SERVICES                                   .00                     40.00    **



BA0225R1   03/30/2024                               STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA                                           PAGE        36
                                               REVENUE SUMMARY BY BUDGET UNIT
                                                FOR PERIOD ENDING: 03/31/2024

AGENCY      10     LABOR & REGULATION
BUDGET UNIT 1036   ELECTRICAL COMMISSION - INFO

CENTER        COMP      ACCOUNT         DESCRIPTION                 CURRENT MONTH            YEAR-TO-DATE

103600080801  6503  4920045             NONOPERATING REVENUES                      .00                 25,464.74

 ACCT:   4920       NONOPERATING REVENUE                                           .00                 25,464.74    *

 ACCT:   49         OTHER REVENUE                                                  .00                 25,464.74    **

 CNTR:   103600080801                                                       122,527.50              1,186,514.78    ***

103600080802  6503  4293816             UNDERTAKING FEES                        400.00                  5,050.00

 ACCT:   4293       BUSINESS & OCCUP LICENSING (NON-GOVERNMENTAL)               400.00                  5,050.00    *

 ACCT:   42         LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES                                    400.00                  5,050.00    **

103600080802  6503  4920045             NONOPERATING REVENUES                      .00                  3,564.74

 ACCT:   4920       NONOPERATING REVENUE                                           .00                  3,564.74    *

 ACCT:   49         OTHER REVENUE                                                  .00                  3,564.74    **

 CNTR:   103600080802                                                           400.00                  8,614.74    ***

 COMP:   6503                                                               122,927.50              1,195,129.52    ****

 B UNIT: 1036                                                               122,927.50              1,195,129.52    *****


	April16Agenda
	FebruaryMeetingMinutesDraft
	Current Rules and Statutes for Disconnect
	Proposed Reinspection and Requested Inspection Fee policy
	2024 Rule Changes



